
 

        
 

 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

NOVEMBER 24, 2020 

MICROSOFT TEAMS & EDUCATION CENTRE 

A.  PROCEDURAL ITEMS 

I.   Roll call 

     II.    Approval of Agenda 

    III.    Conflict of Interest 

  IV.  Education Topic and/or Delegation 

 Superintendent 

1. Update on ADSB Transition Day & Hybrid Model M.B. 

  

  V.  System Information 

 Superintendent 

1. Review of Process & Consultation Timeline for Elliot Lake 7-8 Program J.M. 

2.  Distribution of Policy 6.39 – Handling of Public Concerns  L.R. 

    3.    Distribution of Policy 6.19 – Volunteer Driver Insurance J.S.M. 

  

VI.  Minutes from Previous Meetings 

Minutes to be Approved by the Board: 
1.  N/A 

Minutes to be Received by the  Board: 
1.     Special Education Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes of 2020 09 22 

VII.    Student Trustees’ Report 

 

 

 

VIII.   Reports from Committee Chairs, O.P.S.B.A. 

 

 

 

 



 

        
 

 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

NOVEMBER 24, 2020 

MICROSOFT TEAMS & EDUCATION CENTRE 

 

B.  ACTION ITEMS 
 Superintendent 

1.   Approval of 2019-2020 Audited Financial Statements J.S.M. 

2.   Approval of Senior Administration Recommendation for Elliot Lake 7-8 Program J.M. 

3.   Approval of Policy 6.06 Physical Intervention B.V. 

4.   Receipt of the 2019-2020 Audit Committee Annual Report J.S.M. 

  

  

  

C.  INFORMATION ITEMS 

  

FUTURE MEETINGS AND LOCATIONS 
 

2020 12 08          Organizational Meeting – H.E. Crowder Board Room 
5:30 p.m.            Closed  
7:00 p.m.            Open 
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SECTION 6: ORGANIZATION 

Policy 6.39: Handling of Public Concerns  

 

Supporting Policies 
6.27.02 Workplace Harassment 
6.49 Safe Schools 

 
Supporting Procedures 
Handling of Public Concerns Procedure 
 
Supporting Protocols 
 
Supporting Templates and Forms 
 
Guidelines, Checklists and Other Board Resources 
How To Get Help With A Concern (under development) 

  
External Resources 
Tips for Parents: Solving Problems at School (under development) 
 
Approved by Board Resolution #111-2015 06 16 

 

 
POLICY STATEMENT 
 
The ADSB is committed to encouraging a strong relationship with parents, students and 
community.  The ADSB is committed to addressing public concerns in a fair, respectful and 
effective manner. 
 
 
GUIDING PRINCIPLES: 
 
ADSB is guided by its approved Mission, Vision and Strategic Priority statements while 
addressing public concerns. 
 
ADSB is committed to resolving concerns through a variety of restorative practices. 
 
It is the practice of the ADSB that public concerns and questions be dealt with at the level 
closest to the issue as per the ADSB Handling of Public Concerns Procedure. 

 



Algoma District School Board Policy Manual        

 

Policy 6.39 Handling of Public Concerns Policy Page 1 of 1 

SECTION 6: ORGANIZATION 

Policy 6.39: Handling of Public Concerns  

 

Supporting Policies 
6.27.02 Workplace Harassment 
6.49 Safe Schools 

 
Supporting Procedures 
 
Supporting Protocols 
 
Supporting Templates and Forms 
 
Guidelines, Checklists and Other Board Resources 
How To Get Help With A Concern Guideline 

Restorative Approach 
 
External Resources 
 
Approved by Board Resolution #111-2015 06 16 

 

 
POLICY STATEMENT 
 
The Algoma District School Board (ADSB) is committed to encouraging a strong relationship 
with parents, students and community members and is committed to addressing public 
concerns in a fair, respectful and effective manner. 
 
 
GUIDING PRINCIPLES: 
 
ADSB is guided by its approved Mission, Vision and Strategic Priorities while addressing public 
concerns. 
 
ADSB is committed to resolving concerns through a variety of restorative practices. 
 
It is the practice of the ADSB that public concerns and questions be dealt with at the level 
closest to the issue as per the How To Get Help With A Concern Guideline. 
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 SECTION 6: OPERATIONS   

                      HOW TO GET HELP WITH A CONCERN  

It is the practice of the Algoma District School Board to address public concerns in a fair, 
respectful and effective manner. Typically, concerns are either related to an in-school matter 
(academics, personnel, school operations) or are of a broader context.  The following 
information is offered to support parents and community members with having a concern 
addressed.    

 

Parent(s)/Guardian(s) Seeking Assistance with an Academic or School-Related Concern 

 
1.0 Steps for Addressing Concerns: 

 
 Classroom concerns begin at Step 1 of the process. 
 School-wide concerns begin at Step 2 of the process.  
 District-wide concerns begin at Step 3 of the process. 

 
Step 1: Review of the Issue with the Child’s Teacher 
 
The Parent(s)/Guardian(s) is/are expected to review a concern or issue with the 
classroom Teacher who will arrange at a mutually convenient time. 

 
Step 2: Review by the School Principal 

 
If the Parent(s)/Guardian(s) and the Teacher are not able to resolve the concern, the 
Parent(s)/Guardian(s) may request that the concern be reviewed by the school Principal 
(or designate). The Principal (or designate) will review the concern and work to resolve 
the matter as quickly as possible.  
 
 
Step 3: Review by the Superintendent of Education 
  
If the Parent(s)/Guardian(s) and the School Principal are not able to resolve the 
concern, the Parent(s)/Guardian(s) may request that the concern be reviewed by the 
school’s Superintendent of Education. The Superintendent will review the concern as it 
relates to established policies and procedures and will respond to the 
Parent(s)/Guardian(s). 
 
 
Step 4: Review by Director of Education  
 
If the Parent(s)/Guardian(s) and the Superintendent of Education are not able to resolve 
the issue, the Parent(s)/Guardian(s) may request the concern be reviewed by the 
Director of Education. The Director of Education (or designate) will review the concern 
and respond to the Parent(s)/Guardian(s) about the concerns. 
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2.0 Meetings (where applicable): 

In the event that a meeting will be scheduled, minutes of the meeting will be taken 
and/or a written summary of resolution(s) provided. 

Parents/Guardians have the right to have a representative of their choosing (ie: worker 
from a community agency or organization) in attendance at meetings with staff, subject 
to any limitations established in these guidelines or otherwise. Parents/Guardians may 
need support in order that they can adequately address their child’s/ their childrens’ 
interests.  Any costs/expenses associated with such a representative are the 
responsibility of the Parents/Guardians. 

Principals, Staff and Parents/Guardians will provide, in advance of a meeting, the 
names of all anticipated participants. 

 

3.0 Representative of the Parent(s)/Guardian(s):                                                                                       

From time to time the Parent/Guardian(s) may believe or feel that this support may be 
necessary while Parents/Guardians are attending meetings with the staff employed by 
the Board. 

A representative supporting the Parents/Guardians must agree, at the outset of or in 
advance of the meeting, to respect and maintain the confidentiality of any concern 
discussed at a meeting between Parents/Guardians and staff.  

 

4.0 Restorative Approach: 

If appropriate, it may be recommended that a concern be addressed through a 
restorative practice approach. 

5.0   Respecting Purpose/Content of Meeting: 

Although the subject matter of meetings between Parents/Guardians and staff (including 
meetings at which a representative or a Parent/Guardian is present) may be fairly 
broad, these meetings will generally relate to the education of the student(s) of the 
Parent(s)/Guardian(s) at the school in question. However, there are certain matters that 
staff are unable to discuss with Parents or Guardians. 

Such concerns that normally cannot be discussed include, for example, personal details 
or disciplinary measures concerning other students and personal matters related to staff 
performance issues. 

In the event that discussion cannot be limited to the subject matter that led to the 
meeting (generally the education of the student(s) of the Parent(s)/Guardian(s) at the 
school in question), as necessary, staff will bring closure to any meeting which becomes 
a discussion of personal details concerning other students or personal details about 
staff performance. 
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GENERAL PUBLIC SEEKING ASSISTANCE with a NON-ACADEMIC CONCERN 

If there is a concern from parents or the general public that is of a more general nature (ie. 
condition of a property or facility, general inquiry about education), please call our switchboard 
at 705-945-7111 to outline the nature of the concern and you will be connected or directed to 
the appropriate personnel.   

 

CLARIFICATION OF ROLES 

 

 Trustees: 

Parents or Guardians may contact School Board Trustees at any time (a listing of 
current Trustees is available on our website at www.adsb.on.ca). Trustees will facilitate 
the communication process between the Parent/Guardian and the appropriate staff and 
provide information and direction. Trustees shall direct the Parent or Guardian to the 
process to be followed in resolving any concerns or to the appropriate person or step in 
the process (dependent on the steps the Parent/Guardian has already undertaken to 
resolve the concerns at the time the Trustee is contacted), but Trustees do not act as a 
representative of the Parents or Guardians. 

Community Members may also contact School Board Trustees at any time and 
Trustees will facilitate the communication process between the Community Member and 
the appropriate Senior Administrator, depending on the nature of the inquiry/concern. 

 

 

 School Council Members: 

School Councils were established to advise Principals on matters such as the school 
curriculum and code of student behaviour. They are not forums to discuss individual 
Parent/Guardian-Teacher-Student issues. Any of these matters brought to a School 
Council Member or any school council meeting will be referred immediately to the 
Principal. 

 

 

Parent Involvement Committee (PIC): 

The Parent Involvement Committee is an advisory body that is a direct link between 
parents and the Director of Education and focuses on matters that impact more than 
one school.  Parents who are interested in participating on the Parent Involvement 
Committee can reach out to their child’s School Council Chair or contact the Director’s 
office at 705-945-7234. 
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SECTION 6: OPERATIONS 

Policy 6.19: Volunteer Driver Insurance 

Supporting Policies 

 

Supporting Procedures 

 

Supporting Protocols and Guidelines 

 

Supporting Templates and Forms 

Driver Vehicle Information 

Other Resources 

 

 
Approved by Board Resolution #154-1998 06 23 
Amended by Board Resolution #106-2009 06 16 
Reviewed by Resolution #020-2015 01 27 
 

 
1.0 The Board provides liability insurance coverage for persons or groups acting on the Board’s 

behalf on Board related/approved activities. The limits of liability are reviewed regularly and 
adjusted as required. 

 
2.0 The Board’s Non-Owned Auto Insurance policy has been endorsed to provide indemnification 

to a trustee, officer, employee or volunteer trip driver who is called upon by the Board to use a 
motor vehicle within the scope for their employment for transporting pupils to and from Board 
approved activities. 

 
2.1 Under the Insurance Act of Ontario, an individual owner’s automobile insurance policy is 

always the primary insurance and must therefore respond in the first instance to any claim 
arising out of the use of such motor vehicle. 

 
2.2 The Board’s policy will not respond to a claim where there is no primary limit of insurance.  

Vehicle owners are responsible for their own insurance and must ensure that their 
insurance does not terminate or expire. 
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SECTION 6: OPERATIONS 

Policy 6.19: Volunteer Driver Insurance 

Supporting Policies 

 

Supporting Procedures 

 

Supporting Protocols and Guidelines 

 

Supporting Templates and Forms 

Driver Vehicle Information Form 

Other Resources 

 

 
Approved by Board Resolution #154-1998 06 23 
Amended by Board Resolution #106-2009 06 16 
Reviewed by Resolution #020-2015 01 27 
 

 
1.0 The Board provides liability insurance coverage for persons or groups acting on the Board’s 

behalf on for Board related/approved activities. The limits of liability are reviewed regularly and 
adjusted as required. 

 
2.0 The Board’s Non-Owned Auto Insurance policy has been endorsed to provide indemnification 

to a trustee, officer, employee or volunteer trip driver who is called upon by the Board to use a 
motor vehicle within the scope of for their employment, to for transporting pupils to and from 
Board approved activities. 

 
2.1 Under the Insurance Act of Ontario, an individual owner’s automobile insurance policy is 

always the primary insurance and must therefore respond in the first instance to any claim 
arising from out of the use of such motor vehicle. 

 
2.2 The Board’s policy will not respond to a claim where there is no primary limit of insurance.  

Vehicle owners are responsible for their own insurance and must ensure that their 
insurance does not terminate or expire. 
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   ALGOMA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
   SPECIAL EDUCATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE (S.E.A.C.) 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
September 22, 2020 

Via MS Teams 
12:00 Noon 

 

  Present: P. Mick (Member-At-Large), Lori Lambert (Infant Child Development Program), Amanda 
Gauthier (Thrive), S. Kitts (North Shore Tribal Council), Marnie Yourchuck (North Shore 
Tribal Council - Alternate) 

 
 
Trustees:       R. Reid, S. Evans 
 
Staff: B. Vallee (Superintendent), C. Phillips (Recording Secretary), K. Viita (System                  

Administrator) 
 
Regrets:   M. Barbeau (Community Living Algoma) 
 
      

1. Chair Pat Mick called the meeting to order at 12:00 p.m.  With the approval of Chair 
Mick, Superintendent Vallee to facilitate the remainder of the Teams meeting.  
 

2. Round Table Introduction of members, staff and guests. 
 

3. Approval of Agenda and Minutes (June 9, 2020). 
 

➢ Agenda approval.  Moved by L. Lambert.  Seconded by R. Reid. All in favour. 

➢ Minutes approval – Moved by R. Reid.  Seconded by S. Evans.   All in favour. 

4. Correspondence: none received 
 

5. Presentation: Special Education Budget 2020-2021 (Joe Santa Maria, Executive Superintendent 
of Business & Operations)  

 
 

➢ Joe Santa Maria provided an overview of the 2020-2021 budget as it relates to Special Educa-
tion.   

➢ Information regarding the Grants for Student Needs (GSN) was received during the summer 
months which allowed ADSB to develop and pass a budget.   

➢ Special Education funding has shown a slight increase over last year. Some of the program 
enhancements included in our budget include funding the roll-out of 500 additional laptops for 
special education and use of the Read & Write assistive technology platform.   
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➢ Overall, while the budget revealed a slight deficit, we were able to access funds from the re-
serve to balance.  

➢ The Ministry also provided additional funding to support Boards with modified operations dur-
ing the COVID-19 Pandemic.  Additional funding was provided under this umbrella for both 
Special Education and Mental Health supports.   

 
Presentation:  Mental Heath Summer Programming (Darryl Fillmore, Mental Health Lead) 
 

➢ During the school closure period, the sixteen members of our Mental Health, Counsel-
ling and Attendance team worked very hard to keep connected with students with men-
tal health needs.  While there were many barriers to overcome, counsellors connected 
with students through Edsby, email and phone.  

➢ Extra funding was provided for school boards to offer additional supports for students 
over the summer months.  

➢ ADSB was able to provide 2 full-time and 2 part-time counsellors during July and Au-
gust.  Access was available through an elementary and secondary Summer Wellness 
Line.   

➢ Staff conducted counselling sessions a variety of modes including audio, virtual 
(Doxy.me), and Edsby.  Students in summer school and the elementary summer learn-
ing program were also able the access the support of the counselling team via a referral 
process.  Staff participated in professional training (e.g. BRISC) provided by School 
Mental Health Ontario (SMHO) over the summer months as well.  

 
Questions arising from the presentation: 
S. Evans:  Have these programs strengthened our ability to serve our students coming into this 
very different school year, and do we envision longevity with these programs, i.e. summer of-
ferings.?  In the future, should there be continual funding/programming advocated for provin-
cially and locally?  

 
Crisis can sometimes open new opportunities such as the summer program, which was a great 
success and yes, we would love to run it again.  However, the funding from the Ministry was 
for this summer only.  As a board, we continue to advocate for services for our students on an 
ongoing basis. 

 
L. Lambert: Have you seen a spike in anxiety since schools started?  I have noticed more of 
my families I work with were struggling with start up of school and anxiety. 

 
This summer we noticed hospitalizations related to mental health had increased.  Mental 
health is very important, and, especially since COVID, stress and anxiety are heightened.  This 
was especially true towards the end of August/ beginning of September when students were 
preparing to go back to school. 

 
M. Yourchuck:  How is Algoma District School Board supporting its staff with start-up, Covid 
and this school year? 
 
There has been a lot of stress based on anticipation of what the school year will look like… 
what staff and schools need to do to be prepared.  Getting back into the school environment 
and seeing what was in place has eased some of that.  The PD day before school started was 
also a focus for staff on mental health and well being.  Staff were given some tools and 
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resources (e.g. EAP) that are available to support themselves and their students. It is very im-
portant that staff ”be the calm” for their students.  Principals have been connecting with staff 
regularly as well. 

 
 

6. Member Organization Updates 
 
 
Pat Mick– Member at large:     

➢ Nothing to report 
 

L. Lambert (Infant Child Development Program) 
➢ Very busy with start-up and preparing students for re-entry to school or to remote 

learning 
➢ Meetings are taking place via virtual sessions, outdoors, and office. 
➢ Excited for more funding for approximately 50 more developmental assessments. 
➢ Connecting with approximately 20 parents a week. 

 
A, Gauthier (Thrive)  

➢ Still mostly meeting with parents virtually or via backyard visits 
➢ There is a mix of staff working from home and in the office 
➢  New professional services manager for social work - Stephanie Featherston 

 
M, Yourchuck (North Shore Tribal Council) 

➢ Border closures ended towards the end of summer 
➢ No access to the office building - best way to contact staff is to call or email 
➢ Sherri Kitts has been back from her leave since July and will once again be the primary 

representative on SEAC 
 
7. Report from the Board (Trustees)  

 
➢ Several Board meetings occurred during the summer months regarding ongoing 

preparations for the upcoming school year.  
➢ Tonight’s meeting will be a hybrid with some trustees attending in person while others 

attend via Teams.  
➢ Trustees would like to recognize the amount of work and dedication that Senior Admin 

staff have demonstrated all summer, dealing with constant changes while preparing for 
this year’s start-up.  Other Board staff have also gone above and beyond, getting PPE 
out to all schools, starting up the virtual school and ensuring technology is available. 

➢ Congratulation to Sheryl Evans who was elected OPSBA Northern Rep!   

 
8. Report from Administration (B. Vallee and K. Viita) 

➢ June Professional Development:   
o Autism Awareness Supplement:  Training in the BMS Autism Awareness Sup-

plement, using a virtual platform, was provided to all elementary teaching staff 
during the month of June.  

o Read & Write Training:  All SERTs and Educational Technology Leads (ELTs) 
were provided with an initial round of training regarding installation and use of the 
R&W toolbars.  The training session was recorded to provide a resource all staff 
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to use as they begin the installation process. This was part of the September PD 
Days as well.    

➢ Transitions:  Spring transition meetings took place via Teams or teleconference (de-
pending on the parent’s choice).  Follow-up meetings at the school level will be sched-
uled to take place during the fall.   

➢ September Professional Development:  All staff participated in three professional de-
velopment days prior to the staggered entry of students.  These took place from Sep-
tember 1st – 3rd.  Day One focused on Health & Safety Training for all staff.  Day Two 
focused on the development of student support plans and issues around workplace vio-
lence, with the afternoon spent on Mental Health, Equity, and Anti-Bullying training.  
Day Three was a program focus during the morning, with time during the afternoon 
spent in training on installation and use of the Read & Write assistive technology plat-
form that we are rolling out to all of our schools.     

➢ Website Updates:  The ADSB website has been updated with the current copies of the 
Special Education Plan, Parent’s Guide, Special Education Department listing, as well 
as updated information ‘blurbs” at each level.  The current list of SEAC members has 
also been included. 

➢ Re-Opening Guidelines:  All of the information that has been produced regarding re-
opening guidelines and the information that we receive from public health and the On-
tario government are posted on the website. This information changes frequently, so 
checking the site on an ongoing basis is recommended.  

➢ SERT Sessions:  We are now conducting virtual sessions on a weekly basis with our 
elementary SERT group to ensure that communication and information flow are ongo-
ing.  

➢ September Principal’s Meeting:  The special education portion of our September Prin-
cipal’s Meeting focused on examining modifications to our regular operations through a 
special education lens.  

➢ Formal Assessments:  We know that we have a bit of a backlog for formal assess-
ments due to the school closure from March to June.  To remedy this, we are putting a 
‘rush’ on completing previously scheduled assessments.  Our psychometrists began 
testing this week.  We anticipate that we will have most of the backlog cleared by No-
vember.  It is likely that we will be looking at “summer assessments” during the month of 
July 2021 in order to ‘catch up’ on the backlog.  

➢ External Providers:  To allow our schools time to adjust to the myriad new routines 
and process that they are putting in place, both school boards requested a two-week 
‘blackout’ period without external providers coming into schools to provide regular 
school-based services.  Training of staff of new equipment, etc. is not part of the black-
out.  We appreciate the ongoing discussions and support from our External Providers to 
developing protocols for what services in schools may look like as we move forward.  

 
9. Next meeting:  October 27, 2020  
 

 
10. Motion to adjourn: Moved by. R. Reid.  Seconded by S. Evans.  Meeting adjourned at 

1:20pm 



 

 
    
 
 
 
B.1    DIRECTOR’S REPORT TO THE BOARD 
  
DATE:  2020 11 24 
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 

PERIOD SEPTEMBER 01, 2019 TO AUGUST 31, 2020 
 
 
1.1.0  Background and Information 
 

1.1.1 Our auditors, KPMG LLP, Chartered Accountants, have completed 
their audit work and have provided an opinion on the financial 
statements for the Board for the year ended August 31, 2020 
(Attachment B.1 #1).   The Audit Committee members and financial 
staff will be outlining highlights from the statements prepared by the 
Board and will be prepared to respond to questions Trustees may 
have.   

 
1.1.2 The Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements in 

conjunction with Board staff on November 19, 2020.  The external 
auditors, KPMG LLP Chartered Accountants, were present and 
reviewed their audit findings with the Audit Committee at this 
meeting.  

 
1.1.3 The Audit Committee consists of Trustee members Sheryl Evans, 

(Chair of the Committee), Brent Rankin and Susan Thayer.  Ex-
officio members are Board Chair, Jennifer Sarlo and Lucia Reece, 
the Director of Education. External Audit Committee members are 
Steve Nott. Board staff, who are present as a resource to the 
committee, are the Executive Superintendent of Business & 
Operations, Joe Santa Maria and the Manager of Finance, Christine 
Evoy. 

 
1.1.4 A graphic of revenue by major source is shown on Attachment B.1 

#2. 
 

1.1.5 A graphic of expenditure by major function with related figures is 

shown on Attachment B.1 #3. 



 

 
 
 
 
B.1  DIRECTOR’S REPORT TO THE BOARD 
  
DATE:  2020 11 24 
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 

PERIOD SEPTEMBER 01, 2019 TO AUGUST 31, 2020 
 
 
  Background and Information (Continued) 
 

1.1.6 The Accumulated Surplus and Deferred Revenue Statements on 
Attachment B.1 #4 and #5, provide opening balances, a summary of 
the year’s transactions and closing balances of the individual funds.  
During 2019-20, the Board had a surplus added to its accumulated 
surplus in the amount of $2,833,712. 

 
1.1.7 Attachment B.1 #6 details the Ministry grants. 

 
  

1.2.0  Recommendation 
 

1.2.1 The Audit Committee is recommending that the Board receive and 
approve the audited financial statements for the year ended 
August 31, 2020 as outlined in Attachment B.1 #1 of the Director’s 
Report to the Board of 2020 11 24. 
 
   

1.3.0  Proposed Resolution 
 

1.3.1 That the Board receive and approve the audited financial 
statements for the year ended August 31, 2020 as outlined in 
Attachment B.1 #1 of the Director’s Report to the Board of 2020 
11 24. 
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SCHOOL BOARD 
 

And Independent Auditors’ Report thereon 

Year ended August 31, 2020 
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Director's Report to the Board of 2020 11 24
                                         Attachment B.1 #1 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MANAGEMENT REPORT 

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Algoma District School Board are the 
responsibility of Board management and have been prepared in accordance with the Financial 
Administration Act, supplemented by Ontario Ministry of Education memorandum 2004:B2 and Ontario 
Regulation 395/11 of the Financial Administration Act as described in note 1 to the consolidated financial 
statements. 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates based 
on management’s judgement, particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting period 
cannot be finalized with certainty until future periods. 

Board management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable assurance 
that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in compliance with 
legislative and regulatory requirements, and reliable financial information is available on a timely basis 
for preparation of the consolidated financial statements.  These systems are monitored and evaluated 
by management. 

The Audit Committee of the Board meets with the external auditors to review the consolidated financial 
statements and discuss any significant financial reporting or internal control matters prior to the Board’s 
approval of the consolidated financial statements. 

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, independent external auditors 
appointed by the Board.  The accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report outlines their responsibilities, 
the scope of their examination and their opinion on the Board’s consolidated financial statements. 
 
 

____________________________  ____________________________ 

Director of Education    Superintendent of Business 

 

November 24, 2020 

DRAFT



 
 
 

 KPMG LLP 
 111 Elgin Street, Suite 200 
 Sault Ste. Marie ON P6A 6L6 
 Canada 
 Telephone (705) 949-5811 
 Fax (705) 949-0911 

 
 

KPMG LLP is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent 
member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.   
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP. 

 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Trustees of the Algoma District School Board 

 Opinion 
 We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Algoma District School Board

(the “Board”), which comprise: 

 the consolidated statement of financial position as at August 31, 2020 
 the consolidated statement of operations and accumulated surplus for the year 

then ended 
 the consolidated statement of changes in net debt for the year then ended 
 the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended 
 and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies 

(Hereinafter referred to as the “consolidated financial statements''). 
 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Board as at August 31, 2020
and its consolidated results of operations, its consolidated changes in net debt and its 
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Financial 
Administration Act supplemented by Ontario Ministry of Education memorandum 
2004:B2 and Ontario Regulation 395/11 of the Financial Administration Act. 

 
 Basis for Opinion 
 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
''Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements''
section of our auditors' report.  

We are independent of the Board in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in Canada and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. 

  

DRAFT



 
 
 

 

  

 
 

 
 Emphasis of Matter- Financial Reporting Framework 
 

We draw attention to Note 1 in the financial statements, which describes the applicable
financial reporting framework and the purpose of the financial statements.  

 
As a result, the financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose.  

 
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

 
 Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with 

Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the Financial Administration Act supplemented by
Ontario Ministry of Education memorandum 2004:B2 and Ontario Regulation 395/11 of the 
Financial Administration Act, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Board’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Board or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.  

 
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Board’s financial
reporting process. 

 
 Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 

Statements 
 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.  

 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists.  

 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of the consolidated financial statements.  

 
As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

 
We also: 

 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  
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The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board's internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Board's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Board to cease to continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation

 Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements.  We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

Sault Ste. Marie, Canada 
November 24, 2020 

DRAFT



ALGOMA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

August 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019

   2020    2019

Financial assets
Cash $ 12,474,726       $ 13,611,897       
Accounts receivable - other (note 2) 21,939,716       14,803,839       
Accounts receivable - Approved Capital Funding (note 3) 88,153,733       88,185,853       

Total financial assets 122,568,175     116,601,589     

Financial liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 4) 24,474,889       15,538,843       
Net long-term liabilities (note 5) 76,281,367       79,728,086       
Deferred revenue (note 6) 3,047,252         4,783,802         
Deferred capital contributions (note 8) 183,983,599     174,121,695     
Employee future benefits liability (note 7) 3,728,490         4,178,100         

Total financial liabilities 291,515,597     278,350,526     

Net debt (168,947,422)    (161,748,937)    

Non-financial assets
Prepaid expenses 1,443,469         1,310,431         
Tangible capital assets (note 10) 189,794,489     179,639,077     

Total non-financial assets 191,237,958     180,949,508     

Commitments (note 15)
Contingent liabilities (note 16)
Effects of COVID-19 (note 18)

Accumulated surplus (note 12) $ 22,290,536       $ 19,200,571       

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

On behalf of the Board:

__________________________________  Director of Education

__________________________________  Chair of the Board
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ALGOMA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus

Year ended August 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019

2020 2020 2019
Budget Actual Actual

Revenues:
Municipal grants $ 19,181,879         $ 19,155,826     $ 19,727,755    
Government of Ontario grants:
   - Grants for Student Needs 113,585,522       114,572,500   117,158,750  
   - Other 2,516,707           4,341,770       5,598,281      
Amortization of deferred capital contributions 8,508,064           15,003,655     13,416,860    
Federal grants and fees 6,625,584           6,856,995       6,903,392      
Other revenues - School boards 190,000              188,152          184,609         
Other fees and revenues 2,701,742           2,345,952       1,515,084      
Investment income 120,000              186,807          215,886         
School fundraising and other revenues 3,450,000           2,430,366       3,475,044      

Total revenue 156,879,498       165,082,023   168,195,661  

Expenses (note 9):
Instruction 109,476,106       107,102,960   107,013,798  
Administration 4,999,801           5,587,710       5,372,212      
Transportation 9,294,907           8,764,871       9,063,685      
Pupil accommodation 28,415,507         34,649,151     33,141,552    
School funded activities 3,620,000           2,211,855       3,607,251      
Other 2,516,707           3,675,511       5,438,779      

Total expenses 158,323,028       161,992,058   163,637,277  

Annual surplus (deficit) (1,443,530)          3,089,965       4,558,384      

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 19,200,571         19,200,571     14,642,187    

Accumulated surplus, end of year $ 17,757,041         $ 22,290,536     $ 19,200,571    

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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ALGOMA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
Consolidated Statement of Change in Net Debt

Year ended August 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019

2020 2019

Annual surplus $ 3,089,965         $ 4,558,384        

Tangible capital assets:
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (25,474,130)      (20,580,961)     
Amortization of tangible capital assets 15,318,718       13,416,860      
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets 41,751              248,859           
Gain on sale allocated to deferred revenue (41,751)             (223,613)          

(10,155,412)      (7,138,855)       

Prepaid expenses:
Acquisition of prepaid expenses (1,443,469)        (1,310,431)       
Use of prepaid expenses 1,310,431         793,904           

(133,038)           (516,527)          

Increase in net debt (7,198,485)        (3,096,998)       

Net debt, beginning of year (161,748,937)    (158,651,939)   

Net debt, end of year $ (168,947,422)    $ (161,748,937)   

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ALGOMA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended August 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019

2020 2019

Operating transactions:
Annual surplus $ 3,089,965      $ 4,558,384    

Items not involving cash:
Amortization of tangible capital assets 15,318,718    13,416,860  
Amortization of deferred capital contributions (15,003,655)  (13,416,860) 
Deferred gain on disposal of restricted assets (41,751)         (223,613)      

3,363,277      4,334,771    
Change in non-cash assets and liabilities:

Increase in accounts receivable - other (7,135,877)    (9,002,419)   
Increase in accounts payable 
   and accrued liabilities 8,936,046      2,741,801    
Decrease in deferred revenue (1,736,550)    (106,310)      
Decrease in employee future benefits liability (449,610)       (354,614)      
Increase in prepaid expenses (133,038)       (516,527)      

Cash provided by (applied to) operating transactions 2,844,248      (2,903,298)   

Capital transactions:
Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets (25,474,130)  (20,580,961) 
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets 41,751           248,859       

Cash applied to capital transactions (25,432,379)  (20,332,102) 

Financing transactions:
Debt principal repayments (3,446,719)    (3,334,700)   
Decrease in accounts receivable

 - Approved Capital Funding 32,120           7,001,642    
Net additions to deferred capital contributions 24,865,559    19,122,389  

Cash provided by financing transactions 21,450,960    22,789,331  

Decrease in cash (1,137,171)    (446,069)      

Cash, beginning of year 13,611,897    14,057,966  

Cash, end of year $ 12,474,726    $ 13,611,897  

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ALGOMA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Year ended August 31, 2020 
 
 
 

 5

The principal activity of the Algoma District School Board (the “Board’) is to administer the operations of 
the English elementary and secondary schools in the District of Algoma. 
 

1. Significant accounting policies: 

The consolidated financial statements of the Board have been prepared by management in 
accordance with the basis of accounting described below.  The consolidated financial statements 
contain the following significant accounting policies: 

(a) Basis of accounting: 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Financial 
Administration Act supplemented by Ontario Ministry of Education memorandum 2004:B2 and 
Ontario Regulation 395/11 of the Financial Administration Act. 

The Financial Administration Act requires that the consolidated financial statements be prepared 
in accordance with the accounting principles determined by the relevant Ministry of the Province 
of Ontario.  A directive was provided by the Ontario Ministry of Education within memorandum 
2004:B2 requiring school boards to adopt Canadian public sector accounting standards 
commencing with their year ended August 31, 2004 and that changes may be required to the 
application of these standards as a result of regulation. 

In 2011, the government passed Ontario Regulation 395/11 of the Financial Administration Act.  
The Regulation requires that contributions received or receivable for the acquisition or 
development of depreciable tangible capital assets and contributions of depreciable tangible 
capital assets for use in providing services, be recorded as deferred capital contributions and 
be recognized as revenue in the statement of operations over the periods during which the asset 
is used to provide service at the same rate that amortization is recognized in respect of the 
related asset.  The regulation further requires that if the net book value of the depreciable 
tangible capital asset is reduced for any reason other than depreciation, a proportionate 
reduction of the deferred capital contribution along with a proportionate increase in the revenue 
be recognized.  For Ontario school boards, these contributions include government transfers, 
externally restricted contributions and, historically, property tax revenue.  

The accounting policy requirements under Regulation 395/11 are significantly different from the 
requirements of Canadian public sector accounting standards which require that: 

 government transfers, which do not contain a stipulation that creates a liability, be 
recognized as revenue by the recipient when approved by the transferor and the 
eligibility criteria have been met in accordance with public sector accounting standard 
PS3410; 

 externally restricted contributions be recognized as revenue in the period in which the 
resources are used for the purpose or purposes specified in accordance with public 
sector accounting standard PS3100; and   

 property taxation revenue be reported as revenue when received or receivable in 
accordance with public sector accounting standard PS3510.  

As a result, revenue recognized in the statement of operations and certain related deferred 
revenues and deferred capital contributions would be recorded differently under Canadian 
Public Sector Accounting Standards.  
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ALGOMA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Year ended August 31, 2020 
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(b) Reporting entity: 

The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of 
the reporting entity.  The reporting entity is comprised of all organizations accountable for the 
administration of their financial affairs and resources to the Board and which are controlled by 
the Board, including: 

(i) School generated funds, which include the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of 
various organizations that exist at the school level and which are controlled by the Board 
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. 

(ii) The Board is one of two school boards that entered into a partnership agreement to share 
certain costs related to transportation.  As a result, the Board’s consolidated financial 
statements reflect proportionate consolidation, whereby they include the assets that it 
controls, the liabilities that it has incurred, and its pro-rata share of revenue and expenses. 

Interdepartmental and inter-organizational transactions and balances between these 
organizations are eliminated. 

(c) Trust funds: 

Trust funds and their related operations administered by the Board are not included in the 
consolidated financial statements as they are not controlled by the Board. 

(d)  Government transfers: 

Government transfers, which include legislative grants, are recognized in the consolidated 
financial statements in the period in which events giving rise to the transfer occur, providing the 
transfers are authorized, any eligibility criteria have been met and reasonable estimates of the 
amount can be made.  If government transfers contain stipulations which give rise to a liability, 
they are deferred and recognized in revenue when the stipulations are met. 

Government transfers for capital are deferred as required by Regulation 395/11, recorded as 
deferred capital contributions (DCC) and recognized as revenue in the consolidated statement 
of operations at the same rate and over the same periods as the asset is amortized. 

(e) Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term 
investments.  Short-term investments are highly liquid, subject to insignificant risk of changes in 
value and have a short maturity term of less than 90 days. 
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ALGOMA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Year ended August 31, 2020 
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(f) Tangible capital assets: 

Tangible capital assets are recorded at historical cost less accumulated amortization.  Historical 
cost includes amounts that are directly attributable to acquisition, construction, development or 
betterment of the asset, as well as interest related to financing during construction.  When 
historical cost records were not available, other methods were used to estimate the costs and 
accumulated amortization. 

Leases which transfer substantially all the benefits and risks incidental to ownership of property 
are accounted for as leased tangible capital assets.  All other leases are accounted for as 
operating leases and the related payments are charged to expenses as incurred. 

Tangible capital assets, excluding land, are amortized on a straight-line basis over their 
estimated useful lives as follows: 
 
 

Land improvements 15 years 
Buildings 40 years 
Portable structures 20 years 
Equipment 10 - 15 years 
First-time equipping 10 years 
Furniture 10 years 
Computer hardware 5 years 
Vehicles 5 - 10 years 
Capital leases – computer hardware Term of lease 
 

 

Assets under construction and assets that relate to pre-acquisition and pre-construction costs 
are not amortized until the asset is available for productive use. 

Buildings permanently removed from service and held for resale cease to be amortized and are 
recorded at the lower of carrying value and estimated net realizable value.  

(g) Deferred revenue: 

Certain amounts are received pursuant to legislation, regulation or agreement and may only be 
used in the conduct of certain programs or in the delivery of specific services and transactions.  
These amounts are recognized as revenue in the fiscal year the related expenditures are 
incurred or services are performed. 
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ALGOMA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Year ended August 31, 2020 
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(h) Investment income: 

Investment income earned is reported as revenue in the period earned.   

When required by the funding government or related Act, investment income earned on 
externally restricted funds such as pupil accommodation, education development charges and 
special education forms part of the respective deferred revenue balances. 

(i) Deferred capital contributions: 

Contributions received or receivable for the purpose of acquiring or developing a depreciable 
tangible capital asset for use in providing services, or any contributions in the form of 
depreciable tangible assets received or receivable for use in providing services, shall be 
recognized as deferred capital contribution as defined in Ontario Regulation 395/11 of the 
Financial Administration Act.  These amounts are recognized as revenue at the same rate as 
the related tangible capital asset is amortized.  The following items fall under this category: 

 Government transfers received or receivable for capital purpose 

 Other restricted contributions received or receivable for capital purpose 

 Property taxation revenues which were historically used to fund capital assets 

(j) Retirement and other employee future benefits: 

The Board provides defined retirement and other future benefits to specified employee groups. 
These benefits include pension, life insurance, health care benefits, dental benefits, retirement 
gratuity, service awards, worker’s compensation and long-term disability benefits.  The Board 
accrues its obligation for these employee benefits.   

As part of ratified labour collective agreements for unionized employees that bargain centrally 
and ratified central discussions with the Principals and Vice-Principals Associations, the 
following Employee Life and Health Trusts (ELHTs) were established in 2016-2017: Elementary 
Teachers’ Federation of Ontario (ETFO) and, Ontario Secondary School Teachers’ Federation 
(OSSTF). The following ELHTs were established in 2017-2018: Canadian Union of Public 
Employees Education Workers’ Benefit Trust (CUPE EWBT), and Ontario Non-union Education 
Trust (ONE-T) for non-unionized employees including principals and vice-principals. The ELHTs 
provide health, dental and life insurance benefits to teachers (excluding daily occasional 
teachers), education workers (excluding casual and temporary staff), and other school board 
staff.  Currently ONE-T ELHTs also provide benefits to individuals who retired prior to the school 
board’s participation date in the ELHT.  These benefits are being provided through a joint 
governance structure between the bargaining/employee groups, school board trustees 
associations and the Government of Ontario.  Boards no longer administer health, life and dental 
plans for their employees and instead are required to fund the ELHTs on a monthly basis based 
on a negotiated amount per full-time equivalency (FTE). Funding for the ELHTs is based on the 
existing benefits funding embedded within the Grants for Student Needs (GSN), including 
additional ministry funding in the form of a Crown contribution and Stabilization Adjustment.   

Depending on prior arrangements and employee groups, the Board continues to provide health, 
dental and life insurance benefits for retired individuals that were previously represented by the 
following unions/federations: ETFO, OSSTF and CUPE.   
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ALGOMA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Year ended August 31, 2020 
 
 
 

 9

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(k) Retirement and other employee future benefits (continued): 

The Board has adopted the following policies with respect to accounting for these employee 
benefits: 

(i) The costs of self-insured retirement and other employee future benefit plans are actuarially 
determined using management’s best estimate of salary escalation, accumulated sick days, 
insurance and health care costs trends, disability recovery rates, long-term inflation rates 
and discount rates.  In prior years, the cost of retirement gratuities that vested or 
accumulated over the periods of service provided by the employee were actuarially 
determined using management’s best estimate of salary escalation, accumulated sick days 
at retirement and discount rates.  As a result of the plan change, the cost of retirement 
gratuities is actuarially determined using the employee’s salary, banked sick days and years 
of service as at August 31, 2012 and management’s best estimate of discount rates.  The 
changes resulted in a plan curtailment and any unamortized actuarial gains and losses were 
recognized as at August 31, 2012.  Any actuarial gains and losses arising from changes to 
the discount rate are amortized over the expected average remaining services life of the 
employee group.  

For self-insured retirement and other employee future benefits that vest or accumulate over 
the periods of service provided by employees, such as life insurance and health care 
benefits for retirees, the cost is actuarially determined using the projected benefits method 
prorated on service.  Under this method, the benefit costs are recognized over the expected 
average service life of the employee group. 

For those self-insured benefit obligations that arise from specific events that occur from time 
to time, such as obligations for worker’s compensation and long-term disability, the cost is 
recognized immediately in the period the events occur.  Any actuarial gains and losses that 
are related to these benefits are recognized immediately in the period they arise. 

(ii) The costs of multi-employer defined pension plan benefits, such as the Ontario Municipal 
Employees Retirement System (“OMERS”) pensions, are the employer’s contributions due 
to the plan in the period. 

(iii) The costs of insured benefits are the employer’s portion of insurance premiums owed for 
coverage of employees during the period. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Year ended August 31, 2020 
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(k) Budget figures: 

Budget figures have been provided for comparison purposes and have been derived from the 
budget approved by the Trustees.  The budget approved by the Trustees is developed in 
accordance with the provincially mandated funding model for school boards and is used to 
manage program spending within the guidelines of the funding model. 

The Trustees approve the budget annually.  The approved budget for 2019-2020 is reflected on 
the Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus and the expense by object 
note. 

(l) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with the basis of accounting 
described in note 1(a) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the year.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.  These estimates 
are reviewed periodically, and, as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in earnings 
in the year in which they become known.  Significant estimates include assumptions used in: 

(i) estimating provisions for accrued liabilities, 

(ii) performing actuarial valuations of employee future benefits liabilities, and 

(iii) useful life of fixed capital assets 

(m) Property tax revenue: 

Under Public Sector Accounting Standards, the entity that determines and sets the tax levy 
records the revenue in the financial statements, which in the case of the Board, is the Province 
of Ontario.  As a result, property tax revenue received from the municipalities is recorded as 
part of Provincial Legislative Grants. 
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2. Accounts receivable - other: 
 

  2020 2019 
 
Government of Ontario $ 13,117,214 $ 10,382,445 
First Nations 1,156,277  1,016,829 
Local governments  4,751,935 1,313,842 
Other school boards 188,152 183,933 
Other 2,726,138 1,906,790 
 

  $ 21,939,716 $ 14,803,839 

 

The Ministry of Education introduced a cash management strategy effective September 1, 2018.  As 
part of the strategy, the ministry delays part of the grant payment to school boards where the 
adjusted accumulated surplus and deferred revenue balances are in excess of certain criteria set 
out by the Ministry.  The balance of delayed grant payments included in the receivable balance from 
the Government of Ontario at August 31, 2020 is $10,320,603 (2019 – $ 9,647,050). 

Local governments 

Due to the response to COVID-19, the Province of Ontario extended the deadlines for municipalities 
to pay Education Property Tax (EPT) amounts to the Board.  This amount for the Board was 
$4,751,935 (2019 – $1,313,842) and has been included in accounts receivable on the statement of 
financial position. This amount will be recovered fully by the Board in the following school year.   

3. Accounts receivable – Approved Capital Funding: 

The Province of Ontario (“Province”) replaced variable capital funding with a one-time debt support 
grant in 2009-10.  The Board received a one-time grant that recognizes capital debt as of August 31, 
2010 that is supported by the existing capital programs.  The Board receives this grant in cash over 
the remaining term of the existing capital debt instruments.  The Board may also receive yearly 
capital grants to support capital programs which would be reflected in this account receivable. 

The Board has an account receivable from the Province of Ontario of $88,153,733 as at August 31, 
2020 (2019 - $88,185,853) with respect to capital grants.  

4. Accounts payable – Government of Ontario: 

Due to the response to COVID-19, the Province of Ontario extended the deadlines for municipalities 

to pay Education Property Tax (EPT) amounts to the Board. To mitigate the financial impact of this 
deferral, the Province adjusted its cash flow through the School Board Operating Grant in July 2020 
to pay an additional amount equal to about 25% of the annual education property tax amount as 

forecasted by the Board in the 2019-20 Revised Estimates. This amount for the Board was 
$4,898,534 (2019 – $ nil). This amount will be recovered by the Province in 2021.   
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5. Net long-term liabilities:  

Net long-term liabilities reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position consist of the 

following: 
 

  2020 2019 
 

Long-term debt: 
 

Loans payable to the Ontario Financing Authority with 
interest rates ranging from 2.993% to 5.232%, due in 
semi-annual installments including interest, with maturity 
dates ranging from November 2031 to March 2040 $ 75,015,656 $ 78,344,998 

 

Capital Leases: 
 

Macquarie Equipment Finance capital lease due  
$64,278 annually including interest at 6% per annum, 
maturing August 2021  60,640  117,847 

Macquarie Equipment Finance capital lease due  
$178,919 annually including interest at 6% per annum, 
maturing August 2021  168,792  328,029 

CSI Leasing Canada capital lease due  
$11,751 annually including interest at 6% per annum, 
maturing August 2021  11,086  21,545 

CSI Leasing Canada capital lease due  
$14,632 annually including interest at 6% per annum, 
maturing November 2021  13,804  26,827 

Dell Financial Services capital lease due $81,612 annually 
including interest at 6% per annum, maturing September 2021  76,993  149,627   

Dell Financial Services capital lease due $14,323 annually 
including interest at 6% per annum, maturing October 2022  26,260  38,285    

Dell Financial Services capital lease due $109,500 annually 
including interest at 6% per annum, maturing November 2023  292,694  379,429    

Dell Financial Services capital lease due $169,522 annually 
including interest at 6% per annum, maturing June 2022  310,800  –    

Dell Financial Services capital lease due $80,645 annually  
including interest at 6% per annum, maturing June 2024  279,444  –    

De Lage Landen capital lease due $7,272 annually 
including interest at 6% per annum, maturing June 2022  25,198  –    

 

Carried forward  76,281,367 79,406,587 
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5. Net long-term liabilities (continued):  
 

  2020 2019 
 

Brought forward $ 76,281,367 $ 79,406,587 
 

Dell Financial Services capital lease due $183,130 annually 
including interest at 6% per annum, maturing March 2020  –     172,764 

Macquarie Equipment Finance capital lease due  
$96,533 annually including interest at 6% per annum, 
maturing August 2020  –     91,069 

Macquarie Equipment Finance capital lease due  
$9,184 annually including interest at 6% per annum, 
maturing August 2020  –     8,664 

Macquarie Equipment Finance capital lease due  
$51,942 annually including interest at 6% per annum, 
maturing August 2020  –     49,002 

 

  $ 76,281,367 $ 79,728,086 
 

Included in the consolidated statements of operations and accumulated surplus is interest on long-
term debt and capital leases paid of $3,023,481 (2019 - $3,184,463). 

Principal and interest payments relating to long-term debt and capital leases outstanding are due 
as follows: 
 

  Principal Interest Total 
 

2020 – 2021 $ 4,116,229 $ 2,919,245 $ 7,035,474 
2021 – 2022  3,940,017  2,748,824  6,688,841 
2022 – 2023  3,917,872  2,587,123  6,504,995 
2023 – 2024  3,965,935  2,429,561  6,395,496 
2024 – 2025  4,035,545  2,272,034  6,307,579 
Thereafter  56,305,769  15,666,138  71,971,908 
 

  $ 76,281,367 $ 28,622,925 $ 104,904,293 
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6. Deferred revenue: 

Revenues received and that have been set aside for specific purposes by legislation, regulation or 
agreement are included in deferred revenue and reported on the consolidated statement of financial 
position.  

Deferred revenue set-aside for specific purposes by legislation, regulation or agreement as at 
August 31, 2020 is comprised of: 
 

  2020 2019 
 

Amounts restricted by legislation, regulation or agreement: 
School renewal $ 1,128,220 $ 3,242,347 
Provincial grants  1,476,089  985,010 
Rural and Northern Education Fund  352,951  477,202 
Temporary accommodation  49,826  55,569 
Third party grants  40,166  23,674 
 

  $ 3,047,252 $ 4,783,802 
 

7. Employee future benefits: 

The Board provides defined retirement and other future benefits to specified employee groups.  
These benefits include pension, life insurance and health care benefits, retirement gratuity, worker’s 
compensation and long-term disability benefits. 

a) Retirement benefits: 

(i) Ontario Teacher’s Pension Plan: 

Teachers and related employee groups are eligible to be members of Ontario Teacher’s 
Pension Plan. Employer contributions for these employees are provided directly by the 
Province of Ontario.  The pension costs and obligations related to this plan are a direct 
responsibility of the Province.  Accordingly, no costs or liabilities related to this plan are 
included in the Board’s consolidated financial statements. 

(ii) Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System: 

All non-teaching employees of the Board are eligible to be members of the Ontario Municipal 
Employees Retirement System (OMERS), a multi-employer pension plan.  The plan 
provides defined pension benefits to employees based on their length of service and rates 
of pay.  The Board contributions equal the employee contributions to the plan.  During the 
year ended August 31, 2020, the Board contributed $1,800,049 (2019 – $1,822,340) to the 
plan.  As this is a multi-employer pension plan, these contributions are the Board’s pension 
benefit expenses.  No pension liability for this type of plan is included in the Board’s 
consolidated financial statements. 
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7. Employee future benefits (continued): 

a) Retirement benefits (continued): 

(iii) Retirement gratuities: 

The Board provides retirement gratuities to certain groups of employees hired prior to 
specified dates.  The Board provides these benefits through an unfunded defined benefit 
plan.  The benefit costs and liabilities related to this plan are included in the Board’s 
consolidated financial statements.  The amount of the gratuities payable to eligible 
employees at retirement is based on their salary, accumulated sick days, and years of 
service up to August 31, 2012. 

(iv) Retirement Life Insurance and Health Care Benefits: 

The Board provides life insurance, dental and health care benefits to certain employee 
groups after retirement until the members reach 65 years of age.  The premiums are based 
on the Board experience and retirees’ premiums may be subsidized by the Board.  The 
benefit costs and liabilities related to the plan are provided through an unfunded defined 
benefit plan and are included in the Board’s consolidated financial statements.  Effective 
September 1, 2013, employees retiring on or after this date, do not qualify for board 
subsidized premiums or contributions.   

b) Other employee future benefits: 

(i) Workplace Safety and Insurance Board Obligations: 

The Board is a Schedule 2 employer under the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act and, 
as such, assumes responsibility for the payment of all claims to its injured workers under 
the Act.  The Board does not fund these obligations in advance of payments made under 
the Act.  The benefit costs and liabilities related to this plan are included in the Board’s 
consolidated financial statements.  Plan changes made in 2012 require school boards to 
provide salary top-up to a maximum of 4 ½ years for employees receiving payments from 
the Workplace Safety and Insurance Board, where the previously negotiated collective 
agreement included such provision.  

(ii) Long-term Disability Salary Compensation: 

The Board provides long-term disability benefits including partial salary compensation 
during the period an employee is unable to work or until their normal retirement date. The 
Board provides these benefits through an unfunded defined benefit plan. The benefit costs 
and liabilities related to this plan are included in the Board’s consolidated financial 
statements.  
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7. Employee future benefits (continued): 

b) Other employee future benefits (continued): 

(iii) Sick Leave Top-Up Benefits: 

A maximum of eleven unused sick leave days from the current year may be carried forward 
into the following year only, to be used to top-up salary for illnesses paid through the short-
term leave and disability plan in that year.  The benefit costs expensed in the financial 
statements are $56,727 (2019 – $51,062).  

For accounting purposes, the valuation of the accrued benefit obligation for the sick leave 
top-up is based on actuarial assumptions about future events determined as at August 31, 
2020 and is based on the average daily salary and banked sick days of employees as at 
August 31, 2020.  

(iv) Life Insurance Benefits: 

The Board provides a separate life insurance benefits plan for certain retirees.  The 
premiums are based on the Board experience or the rate for active employees. Depending 
on the year in which a retiree has retired and the board’s prior arrangements, retirees’ 
premiums could be subsidized by the Board. The benefit costs and liabilities related to the 
subsidization of these retirees under this group plan are included in the Board’s 
consolidated financial statements. 

(v) Health Care and Dental Benefits: 

The Board sponsors a separate plan for certain retirees to provide group health care and 
dental benefits.  The premiums are based on the Board experience or the rate for active 
employees. Depending on the year in which a retiree has retired and the Board’s prior 
arrangements, retirees’ premiums could be subsidized by the Board.  The benefit costs and 
liabilities related to the plan are included in the Board’s consolidated financial statements.   
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7. Employee future benefits (continued): 

The accrued benefit obligations for employee future benefit plans as at August 31, 2020 are based 
on actuarial assumptions of future events determined for accounting purposes as at August 31, 
2019 and based on updated average daily salary and banked sick days as at August 31, 2020.  
These valuations take into account the plan changes outlined above and the economic assumptions 
used in these valuations are the Board’s best estimates of expected rates of: 

 2020 2019 
 

Inflation 1.5% 1.5% 
Wage and salary escalation 0.0% 0.0% 
Insurance and health care cost escalation 4.0% 4.0% 
Discount on accrued benefit obligation 1.4% 2.0% 
 

 

The Board has internally appropriated an amount for retirement gratuities totaling $1,310,279 (2019 
– $1,310,279). 

Information with respect to the Board’s retirement and other employee future benefit obligations is 

as follows: 
 

   2020 2019 
  Other Total Total 
  employee employee employee 
 Retirement future future future 
 benefits benefits benefits benefits 
 

Accrued employee futures 
benefits obligations $ 2,280,014 $ 1,659,881 $ 3,939,895 $ 4,305,156 

Actuarial (gain) loss in fiscal year 44,600 (29,447) 15,153 140,117 
Unamortized actuarial losses (226,558) –    (226,558) (267,173) 
 

Employee future benefit liability $ 2,098,056 $ 1,630,434 $ 3,728,490 $ 4,178,100 
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7. Employee future benefits (continued): 
 

Accrued benefit liability   2020 2019 

  Other Total Total 
  employee employee employee 
 Retirement future future future 
 benefits benefits benefits benefits 
 

Balance, beginning of year $ 2,251,266 $ 1,926,834 $ 4,178,100 $ 4,532,714 

Prior year unamortized loss 267,173 –    267,173 159,235 

Current period benefit costs –    (181,026) (181,026) 456,170 

Interest cost 47,509 33,605 81,114 125,987 

Benefits paid (285,934) (119,532) (405,466) (968,950) 

   2,280,014   1,659,881  3,939,895  4,305,156 

Actuarial (gain) loss in fiscal year (44,600) 59,753 15,153 140,117 

Unamortized actuarial losses (226,558) –    (226,558) (267,173) 
 

Balance, end of year $ 2,008,856 $ 1,719,634 $ 3,728,490 $ 4,178,100 

 

Employee future benefit expense1   2020 2019 

  Other Total Total 
  employee employee employee 
 Retirement future future future 
 benefits benefits benefits benefits 
 

Current year benefit cost $ –    $ (181,026)  $ (181,026) $ 456,170 
Interest on accrued benefit obligation 47,509 33,605 81,114 125,987 
Amortization of actuarial loss (gain) 85,215 (29,447) 55,768 32,179 
 

  $ 132,724 $ (176,868) $ (44,144) $ 614,336 

 
1  Excluding pension contributions to multi-employer pension plans, described in note 7(a). 
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8. Deferred capital contributions:  

Deferred capital contributions include grants and contributions received that are used for the 
acquisition or development of depreciable tangible capital assets in accordance with Ontario 
Regulation 395/11 that have been expended by year end.  The contributions are amortized into 
revenue over the life of the asset. 
 

  2020 2019 
 

Opening balance $ 174,121,695 $ 168,416,166 

Additions to deferred capital contributions 24,865,559 19,147,635 
Revenue recognized in the period (15,003,655) (13,416,860) 
Disposal of tangible capital assets –    (25,246) 
 

Ending balance $ 183,983,599 $ 174,121,695 
 

9. Expenses by object: 

The following is a summary of the expenses reported on the consolidated statement of operations 
and accumulated surplus by object: 
 

  2020  2020  2019 
   Budget  Actual  Actual 

 

Current expenses: 
Salary and wages $ 101,774,441 $ 100,942,743 $ 102,032,598 
Employee benefits  16,314,674  15,523,649  15,694,600 
Staff development  574,738  340,739  495,986 
Supplies and services  13,227,473  13,539,567  13,570,976 
Interest  3,061,238  3,023,481  3,184,463 
Rental  55,500  19,770  60,989 
Fees and contract services  9,507,826  10,583,127  10,829,034 
School funded activities  3,620,000  2,211,855  3,607,251 
Other  1,679,073  488,409  744,520 
Amortization of tangible capital assets  8,508,065  15,318,718  13,416,860 
 

  $ 158,323,028 $ 161,992,058 $ 163,637,277 
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9. Tangible capital assets

Balance at Additions Disposals Balance at
August 31, and write-offs and August 31,

Cost 2019 transfers adjustments 2020

Land $ 2,776,473      $ - $ - $ 2,776,473       
Land improvements 17,894,936    126,847       - 18,021,783 
Buildings 255,386,701  23,024,720  (5,290,771)   273,120,650   
Portable structures 521,994         6,212           (79,400)        448,806          
Equipment (10 years) 735,227         932,315       (89,874)        1,577,668       
Equipment (15 years) 105,639         - (44,371) 61,268            
First-time equipping (10 years) 2,348,302      - - 2,348,302       
Furniture 787,512         284,204       - 1,071,716 
Computer hardware 1,792,213      142,305       (608,348)      1,326,170       
Vehicles 109,059         84,646         - 193,705 
Capital leases - 

computer hardware 3,511,079      872,881       (249,461)      4,134,499 
Construction in progress 173,620         - - 173,620          

$ 286,142,755  $ 25,474,130  $ (6,362,225)   $ 305,254,660   

Balance at Disposals Balance at
Accumulated August 31, write-offs and August 31,
amortization 2019 Amortization adjustments 2020

Land $ - $ - - $ - 
Land improvements 10,068,201    1,827,637    - 11,895,838 
Buildings 90,590,147    11,696,261  (5,290,771)   96,995,637     
Portable structures 324,803         29,724         (79,400)        275,127          
Equipment (10 years) 420,524         116,118       (89,874)        446,768          
Equipment (15 years) 89,111           5,564           (44,371)        50,304            
First-time equipping (10 years) 1,515,378      251,347       - 1,766,725 
Furniture 260,438         93,240         - 353,678 
Computer hardware 1,185,881      322,888       (608,348)      900,421 
Vehicles 53,282           30,276         - 83,558 
Capital leases - 

computer hardware 1,995,913      945,663       (249,461)      2,692,115       

$ 106,503,678  $ 15,318,718  $ (6,362,225)   $ 115,460,171   

20
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10. Tangible capital assets (continued): 

 

    Net book value Net book value 
    August 31, 2020 August 31, 2019 

 

Land     $ 2,776,473 $ 2,776,473 
Land improvements      6,125,945  7,826,735 
Buildings        176,125,013  164,796,554 
Portable structures      173,679   197,191 
Equipment (10 years)      1,130,900   314,703 
Equipment (15 years)      10,964  16,528 
First-time equipping (10 years)     581,577  832,924 
Furniture      718,038   527,074 
Computer hardware      425,749  606,332 
Vehicles      110,147  55,777 
Capital leases - computer hardware     1,442,384  1,515,166 
Construction in progress      173,620  173,620 
 
      $ 189,794,489 $ 179,639,077 
 

11. Ontario School Board Insurance Exchange (OSBIE): 

The Board is a member of the Ontario School Board Insurance Exchange (OSBIE), a reciprocal 
insurance company licensed under the Insurance Act. OSBIE insures general public liability, 
property damage and certain other risks.  The ultimate premiums over a five-year period are based 
on the reciprocal’s and the Board’s actual claims experience.  Periodically, the Board may receive 
a refund or be asked to pay an additional premium based on its pro rata share of claims experience.  
The current five-year term expires December 31, 2021. 

12. Accumulated surplus: 

Accumulated surplus consists of the following: 
 

  2020 2019 
 

Revenues recognized for land $ 2,776,473 $ 2,776,473 
Surplus available for compliance 19,616,397 16,782,685 
School generated funds 2,050,222 1,831,711 
Employee future benefits (1,310,279) (1,310,279) 
Other surplus appropriated, unavailable for compliance (842,277) (880,019) 
 

Total accumulated surplus   $ 22,290,536 $ 19,200,571 
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13. Areas of jurisdictions without municipal organization: 

The Board performs the duties of levying and collecting taxes, conducting elections of members, 
etc. in territory without municipal organization.  The outlay by the Board in 2020 in respect of 
performing duties of municipal council is reported by area in a separate statement. 

Certain costs are recoverable through a levy on all rateable property in the area and other approved 
costs are recoverable through an offset to the local taxation revenue. 

14. First Nation fees: 

Tuition and transportation fee revenue for education services provided to First Nations’ students for 

the year are as follows: 
 

  2020 2019 
 

Batchewana First Nation $ 1,577,497 $ 1,734,984 
Brunswick House First Nation 539,508 530,954 
Chapleau Cree First Nation 160,574 122,572 
Chapleau Ojibwe –    32,242 
Indian Affairs-Nippissing 37,998 –    
Garden River First Nation 2,804,977 2,879,306 
Michipicoten First Nation 138,803 12,897 
Mississauga First Nation 516,646 580,513 
Serpent River First Nation 635,445 613,716 
Temagami First Nation 7,163 15,424 
Thessalon First Nation 378,104 320,892 
 

   $ 6,796,715 $ 6,843,500 

 

15. Commitments: 

Leases: 

The Board has entered into various lease agreements. Minimum payments (including taxes 
excluding tax rebates) for the next five years are approximately as follows: 

 
2021   $ 732,455 
2022    381,262 
2023    197,417 
2024    87,917 
2025    –    
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16. Contingent liabilities: 

The Board is involved in certain legal matters and litigation, the outcomes of which are not presently 
determinable.  The loss if any, from these contingencies will be accounted for in the year in which 
the matters are resolved.  Management maintains adequate insurance to cover these matters. 
Amounts, if any, not covered by insurance are not determinable at this time and will be recorded in 
the period the matters are resolved. 

17. Transportation Consortium: 

The Board provides transportation services in partnership with the Huron-Superior Catholic District 
School Board in order to provide common administration of student transportation in the Region.  
This agreement was executed in an effort to increase delivery efficiency and cost effectiveness of 
student transportation for each of the Boards.  Under the agreement, decisions related to the 
financial and operating activities of Algoma and Huron Superior Transportation Services Consortium 
are shared.  No partner is in a position to exercise unilateral control. 

The Board’s consolidated financial statements reflect its pro-rata share of revenues and expenses. 

18. Effects of COVID-19: 

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the Coronavirus COVID-19 (COVID- 
19) outbreak a pandemic. This has resulted in significant financial, market and societal impacts in 
Canada and around the world. 

From the declaration of the pandemic to the date of approval of these financial statements, the 
Board implemented the following actions in relation to the COVID-19 pandemic: 

— The closure of a number of schools and facilities to the general public; 

— The general public has been restricted access to the board administrative office; 

— The implementation of working from home requirements for certain Board employees; 

The ultimate duration and magnitude of the COVID-19 pandemic’s impact on the Board’s operations 
and financial position is not known at this time. These impacts could include a decline in future cash 
flows, changes to the value of assets and liabilities. An estimate of the financial effect of the 
pandemic on the Board is not practicable at this time. 
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[*]  Provincially determined by the Ministry

Revenue by Major Source

Government of Ontario 111,594,262$      
Local Taxation [*] 19,155,826          
First Nation Tuition Fees 6,856,995            
Other Grants 4,341,770            
Other Revenues 5,699,149            
Amort. Deferred Capital Contribution 15,003,655          

Total 162,651,657$      

Government of Ontario
68.85%

Local Taxation [*]
13.08%

First Nation Tuition 
Fees

4.22%

Other Grants
7.06%

Other Revenues
1.26%

Amort. Deferred 
Capital Contribution

9.22%

REVENUE BY MAJOR SOURCE
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2019-20 Financial Statements

Expenditure by Major Function

Classroom Instruction (Note 1) 92,783,598$        
Pupil Accommodation 16,389,938          
Non-classroom (Note 2) 14,319,362          
Transportation 8,764,872            
Administration 5,587,710            
Non-operating Expenditure 9,487,460            
Amortization 15,318,717          

Total 162,651,657$      

Note 1  - Classroom Instruction Detail

Classroom Teachers 68,228,311               
Supply Teachers 2,616,983                 
Teacher Assistants 9,177,392                 
Early Childhood Educators 2,290,445                 
Texts & Classroom Supplies/Equipment 3,653,796                 
Computers 1,067,751                 
Professionals & Paraprofessionals 3,395,095                 
Library & Guidance 2,080,789                 
Professional Development 273,035                    

Total 92,783,598               

Note 2  - Non-classroom Detail

Coordinators and Consultants 2,605,439                 
Principals and Vice Principals 7,439,730                 
Department Heads 144,062                    
School Office 3,190,064                 
Continuing Education 940,067                    

14,319,362               

Classroom Instruction 
(Note 1)
57.04%

Pupil Accommodation
10.08%

Non-classroom 
(Note 2)
9.00%

Transportation
5.39%

Administration
3.44%

Non-operating 
Expenditure

5.83%Amortization
9.42%

EXPENDITURES BY MAJOR FUNCTION
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Line 

No.
Accumulated Surplus/Deficit

 Balance at 

Aug. 31/19 

 Accrued 

Interest 

 Amount 

Committed in 

2019-20 from 

Prior Year 

Surpluses 

 Transfer to 

Committed 

Capital 

 Increase 

(Decrease) in 

Accum. Surplus/ 

Deficit 

 Balance at

Aug. 31/20 

( A ) ( B ) ( C ) ( D ) ( E ) ( F ) ( G )

1 INTERNALLY APPROPRIATED

2 Unrestricted Capital

3 General Capital 738,783              7,018               -                        (650,323)                      -                             95,478                       

4 School Renewal (formerly Pupil Accommodation) 536,830              5,100               -                        -                               -                             541,930                     

5 Sub-total - Capital 1,275,613           12,118             -                        (650,323)                      -                             637,408                     

6

7 Retirement Gratuities

8 Retirement Gratuities 1,070,971           -                   -                        -                               -                             1,070,971                  

9 Service Gratuities 239,308              -                   -                        -                               -                             239,308                     

11 Sub-total Retirement Gratuities 1,310,279           -                   -                        -                               -                             1,310,279                  

12

13 Working Funds 11,292,978         -                   -                        -                               3,035,386                   14,328,364                

14 Carry-over 162,906              -                   -                        -                               143,021                      305,927                     

15 Committed Capital - Education Centre Renovations -                      -                   650,323                -                               -                             650,323                     

16 Committed Capital CASS Addition 489,364              -                   -                        -                               (266,751)                    222,613                     

17 Committed Capital Boreal 2,251,545           -                   -                        -                               (90,062)                      2,161,483                  

18 TOTAL INTERNALLY APPROPRIATED 16,782,685         12,118             650,323                (650,323)                      2,821,594                   19,616,397                

Note:  Balances agree to the Audited Financial Statements.  Ref. Note 11. Accumulated Surplus

Analysis of Surplus/(Deficit) Balances
2019-20 Financial Statements
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Line 

No.
Deferred Revenue

 Balance at 

Aug. 31/19 

 Accrued 

Interest 

 Contributions 

Received  

 Transfer to 

Revenue

2019-20 

 Balance at 

Aug. 31/20 

(A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)

1 Deferred Revenue (Externally Restricted)

2 Operating

3 Special Education 606,835            -                    19,521,597               (19,092,895)           1,035,537         

4 EPO/PPF Grants 300,160            -                    1,929,137                 (1,788,744)             440,553            

5 LBS 78,016              -                    -                            (78,016)                  -                    

6 Other Third Party Grants 23,672              -                    23,705                      (7,211)                    40,166              

7 Subtotal -Restricted Operating 1,008,683         -                    21,474,439               (20,966,866)           1,516,256         

8 School Renewal (Pupil Accommodation) 3,242,347         10,617              3,209,583                 (5,334,326)             1,128,221         

9 Rural and Northern Education Fund 477,202            3,321                232,913                    (360,485)                352,951            

10 Temporary Accommodation 55,569              469                   -                            (6,212)                    49,826              

11 Sub-total Restricted Capital 3,775,118         14,407              3,442,496                 (5,701,023)             1,530,998         

12 Deferred Revenue (Externally Restricted) 4,783,801         14,407              24,916,935               (26,667,889)           3,047,254         

Note:  Balance at August 31, 2020 agrees to the Audited Financial Statements.  Ref. Note 6. Deferred Revenue

Analysis of Deferred Revenue Balances
2019-20 Financial Statements
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Algoma District School Board 2017-18 Financial Statements

Grants and Other Revenue - Comparison by Year

2018-19 2019-20 2019-20 2019-20 change change change

Elementary 6,547             6,403                  6,622                  6,657                 35                      254                 109                        
Secondary 3,045             3,054                  3,062                  3,058                 (4)                       4                     13                          
     Total 9,593             9,457                  9,684                  9,714                 30                      257                 122                        

Grant Category 2018-19 2019-20 2019-20 2019-20 change change change

No. (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) ( E ) - ( D ) ( E ) - ( C ) ( E ) - ( B )
OPERATING GRANTS

1 Foundation Allocation-Elementary:
2       Base Amount 33,945,241    32,825,887         34,177,890         34,512,691        334,801             1,686,804       567,450                 
3       School Foundation Grant 5,264,675      5,489,639           5,332,212           5,354,901          22,689               (134,738)         90,226                   
4       Sub-total-Elementary 39,209,916    38,315,526         39,510,102         39,867,592        357,490            1,552,066       657,676                 
5 Foundation Allocation-Secondary
6       Base Amount 17,166,879    14,128,766         14,206,730         14,282,875        76,145               154,109          (2,884,004)             
7       School Foundation Grant 4,268,746      4,053,218           4,316,916           4,418,063          101,147             364,845          (2,884,004)             
8       Sub-total-Secondary 21,435,625    18,181,984         18,523,646         18,700,938        177,292            518,954          (2,734,687)            
9 Labour Enhancement -                      -                      -                     -                  -                         

10 Total Foundation Base 51,112,120    46,954,653         48,384,620         48,795,566        410,946             1,840,913       (2,316,554)             
11 Total Foundation Local Priorities 9,533,421      9,542,857           9,649,128           9,772,964          123,836             230,107          239,543                 
12 Total Foundation Allocation 60,645,541    56,497,510         58,033,748         58,568,530        534,782             2,071,020       (2,077,011)             
13 Special Education Allocation:
14       SEPPA 6,990,327      6,917,865           7,145,416           7,210,390          64,974               292,525          220,063                 
15       High Needs per pupil amount 10,102,794    9,809,183           9,619,183           10,649,579        1,030,396          840,396          546,785                 
16       Special Education Equip Allocation 328,714         324,011              522,710              522,329             (381)                   198,318          193,615                 
17       ISA Amounts with offsetting expenses 1,442,250      1,233,799           1,233,799           1,249,090          15,291               15,291            (193,160)                
18       Behavioural Expertise 128,657         256,944              259,059              261,194             2,135                 4,250              132,537                 
19       Sub-total-Spec. Ed. 18,992,742    18,541,802         18,780,167         19,892,582        1,112,415          1,350,780       899,840                 
20 Language Allocation 1,633,598      1,766,371           1,936,492           1,805,837          (130,655)            39,466            172,239                 
21 Distant/Supported Schools 4,306,410      4,700,552           3,632,756           4,770,424          1,137,668          69,872            464,014                 
22 Remote & Rural Allocation 6,472,433      6,433,829           231,411              6,587,400          6,355,989          153,571          114,967                 
23 Rural andNorthern Community Allocation 234,802         231,411              6,558,185           232,913             (6,325,272)         1,502              (1,889)                    
24 Learning Opportunities  Allocation 3,379,120      1,890,075           1,894,369           1,896,688          2,319                 6,613              (1,482,432)             
30 Adult Ed., Con. Ed. & Summer Schl. 463,744         668,500              583,912              636,998             53,086               (31,502)           173,254                 
31 Teacher Qualifications & Experience 10,455,146    12,288,143         12,314,234         11,319,008        (995,226)            (969,135)         863,862                 
32 New Teacher Induction Program 70,348           75,294                75,294                75,377               83                      83                   5,029                     
33 ECE Q&E Allocation 667,952         581,812              625,419              649,493             24,074               67,681            (18,459)                  
34 Restraint Savings (112,150)        (112,150)             (112,150)             (112,150)            -                     -                  -                         
35 Transportation Allocation 8,893,214      9,014,862           9,355,216           9,044,569          (310,647)            29,707            151,355                 
36 Admin. & Governance Alloc. 5,230,635      5,160,149           5,216,446           5,217,787          1,341                 57,638            (12,848)                  
37 School Operations Allocation 12,443,272    12,481,668         12,225,389         12,637,169        411,780             155,501          193,897                 
38 Community Use of School 171,656         172,178              172,178              172,178             -                     -                  522                        
39 Declining Enrolment Adjustment -                 272,166              -                      -                     -                     (272,166)         -                         
40 Indigenous Education Amount 1,455,238      1,457,221           1,542,591           1,581,901          39,310               124,680          126,663                 
44 Safe and Accepting Schools 279,137         279,203              284,397              286,779             2,382                 7,576              7,642                     
45 Trustees' Association Fee 43,316           43,316                43,316                43,316               -                     -                  -                         

Net Savings from Strike -                 -                      -                      (2,027,305)         (2,027,305)         (2,027,305)      (2,027,305)             
56 MTCA Allocation (3,392,071)     (3,333,751)          (3,333,751)          (3,381,587)         (47,836)              (47,836)           10,484                   
47 General Operating Allocation 132,334,083  129,110,161       130,059,619       129,897,907      (161,712)            787,746          (2,436,176)             

OTHER REVENUE
48 Fees 6,843,500      6,561,584           6,843,500           6,796,714          (46,786)              235,130          (46,786)                  
49 Transportation Recoveries 244,501         254,000              59,892                60,281               389                    (193,719)         (184,220)                
50 Other Revenue 1,730,948      1,439,175           1,915,577           2,720,911          805,334             1,281,736       989,963                 
51 Other Operating Grants 5,598,300      2,516,707           5,598,281           4,341,770          (1,256,511)         1,825,063       (1,256,530)             
55 Election Costs 14,294           -                      -                      -                     -                     -                  (14,294)                  
57 Other Revenue 14,431,543    10,771,466         14,417,250         13,919,676        (497,574)            3,148,210       (511,867)                

59 CAPITAL GRANTS
60 Short Term interest on capital 104,490         -                      -                      88,075               88,075               88,075            (16,415)                  
61 Debt Alloc. 3,103,604      2,978,238           2,978,238           2,978,238          -                     -                  (125,366)                
65 Minor Tangible Capital Assets 3,392,071      3,275,451           3,333,751           3,381,587          47,836               106,136          (10,484)                  
66 School Renewal Allocation 3,189,983      3,111,159           3,144,445           3,209,583          65,138               98,424            19,600                   
67 Temporary Accommodation -                 -                      -                      6,212                 6,212                 6,212              6,212                     
68 School Condition Improvement 11,760,011    11,139,689         12,600,000         12,295,395        (304,605)            1,155,706       535,384                 
69 Community Hub -                 -                      -                      -                     -                     -                  -                         
70 Full Day Kindergarten -                 -                      -                      -                     -                     -                  -                         
71 Early ON -                 -                      -                      -                     -                     -                  -                         
72 Child Care Capital 1,781,425      -                      2,226,600           4,871,523          2,644,923          4,871,523       3,090,098              
73 Greenhouse Gas Reduction -                 -                      -                      -                     -                     -                  -                         
74 Capital Priorities Grant 306,237         -                      6,201,968           -                     (6,201,968)         -                  (306,237)                

75 Capital Grant Allocation 23,637,821    20,504,537         30,485,002         26,830,613        (3,654,389)         6,326,076       3,192,792              

76 Total Grant Funding and Other Revenue Available 170,403,447  160,386,164       174,961,871       170,648,196      (4,313,675)         10,262,032     244,749                 

77
78 Flexibility Grant (included in Total Revenue)
79       Declining Enrolment Adjustment -                 272,166              1,542,591           -                     (1,542,591)         (272,166)         -                         

 Original Estimate  Prior Year Actual 

 Actual  Original Estimates  Revised Estimates  Actual  Revised Estimate  Original Estimate  Prior Year Actual 

Enrolment  Actual   Original Estimates  Revised Estimates  Actual   Revised Estimate 
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B.2   DIRECTOR’S REPORT TO THE BOARD 
  
DATE:  2020 11 24 
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF SENIOR ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION FOR 

ELLIOT LAKE 7-8 PROGRAM 
    
 
2.1.0 Background 
 

2.1.1 The Algoma District School Board has opened Intermediate Programs 
in all secondary composite schools in Sault Ste Marie and Central 
Algoma.   

 
2.1.2 Intermediate Programs have been designed to give students enhanced 

program opportunities and a gradual, supervised transition into 
secondary school within a high school setting.  

 
2.1.3 In addition, K-12 schools have been developed in Chapleau and 

Hornepayne and are in the planning stages for Blind River and Wawa. 
 
2.1.4 Elliot Lake remains the only ADSB community without a 7-12 or K-12 

program.  With space limited at both Central Avenue Public School and 
Esten Park Public School due to enrolment, and space available at 
Elliot Lake Secondary School, Senior Administration began to 
investigate the opportunity to develop a new Elliot Lake Intermediate 
Program at Elliot Lake Secondary School to provide enhanced 
programming and transition opportunities for grade 7 and 8 students in 
Elliot Lake. 

 
 
2.2.0             Information 

 
2.2.1 Under section 2.2.4 of Policy 5.01 - Pupil School Accommodation 

Review, Policy 5.01 does not apply, “When the Board is considering 
the relocation of a grade or grades or a program, where the enrolment 
in the grade or grades, or program, constitutes less than 50% of the 
enrolment of the school.” 

 
2.2.2  When there is an exception, like that outlined section 2.2.4 of Policy 

5.01, section XVI Exemptions of the Ministry of Education Pupil 
Accommodation Review Guideline (April 2018) advises, “A school 
board is expected to inform school communities about proposed 
accommodation plans for students before a decision is made by the 
Board of Trustees.”  In addition, “A transition plan will be put in place 
following the Board of Trustees’ decision to consolidate, close or move 
a school or students in accordance with this section.” 

 



 
B.2   DIRECTOR’S REPORT TO THE BOARD 
  
DATE:  2020 11 24 
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF SENIOR ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION FOR 

ELLIOT LAKE 7-8 PROGRAM 
 
  
2.2.0 Information continued 
 

2.2.3 Over the past 10 months, steps have been taken to inform the Elliot 
Lake school communities about the proposed plan to move grade 7 and 
8 students from Central Avenue Public School and Esten Park Public 
School to a new Elliot Lake Intermediate Program to be located in Elliot 
Lake Secondary School (ELSS): 

 Meetings were held in Elliot Lake with the School Council Chairs 
and the full School Councils of Central Avenue PS, Esten Park PS 
and ELSS on February 26 and March 4, 2020; 

 The first letter communicating a proposed move of the grade 7 and 
8 students to the Elliot Lake Intermediate Program at ELSS for 
September 2020, and inviting stakeholders to a community meeting 
originally scheduled for March 24, was sent to parents/guardians 
and staff at all Elliot Lake schools, union presidents, and Serpent 
River First Nation on March 5, 2020; 

 Due to the COVID-19 shut-down, the consultation and planned 
move were paused on March 23, 2020; 

 The second letter communicating the proposed move of the grade 
7 and 8 students to the new Elliot Lake Intermediate Program at 
ELSS for September 2021 and inviting stakeholders to a virtual 
community meeting on November 4, 2020 was shared via email, 
Edsby, School Messenger and in hard copy, with parents/guardians 
and staff at all Elliot Lake schools, union presidents, and Serpent 
River First Nation on October 21, 2020; 

 The first virtual community meeting, hosted through Microsoft 
Teams Live Event, provided an overview of the proposed move of 
the grade 7 and 8 students to the new Elliot Lake Intermediate 
Program on November 4, 2020.  Families without reliable 
technology access had the opportunity to participate in the meeting 
at a school site.  The meeting included an overview of enhanced 
program opportunities and safety measures, and opportunities for 
questions and answers and to provide feedback on opportunities 
and challenges.  A link to a recording of the meeting, and links to 
participate in online Thoughtexchanges were shared with all 
parents/guardians and staff on November 5, 2020; 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



B.2   DIRECTOR’S REPORT TO THE BOARD 
  
DATE:  2020 11 24 
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF SENIOR ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION FOR 

ELLIOT LAKE 7-8 PROGRAM 
 
  
2.2.0 Information continued 
 

 Parents/guardians, staff and students participated in online 
feedback opportunities facilitated by the Thoughtexchange platform 
from November 4 to 12; 

 A third letter reiterating the proposed move of the grade 7 and 8 
students in September 2021, and inviting stakeholders to a second 
virtual community meeting on November 18, 2020 was shared via 
email, Edsby, School Messenger and in hard copy, with 
parents/guardians and staff at all Elliot Lake schools, union 
presidents, and Serpent River First Nation on November 13, 2020; 

 The second virtual community meeting, hosted through Microsoft 
Teams Live Event, reviewed the recommendation to move the 
grade 7 and 8 students to the new Elliot Lake Intermediate Program 
at ELSS and responded to questions and feedback provided in the 
Thoughtexchanges. The meeting included a panel of ADSB staff 
with experience in Intermediate Programs and an opportunity to ask 
the panel questions about the other ADSB 7-12 schools.  A timeline, 
preparing for a September 2021 opening of the new program, 
including possible transition plans, was also shared.  Participants 
also had an opportunity to share through Thoughtexchange how 
they would like to continue to be involved in the process if the 
recommendation is approved by Trustees.  A link to a recording of 
the meeting, and links to participate in the online Thoughtexchange 
was shared with all parents/guardians and staff on November 19, 
2020. 

  
 
2.3.0 Recommendation 

 
2.3.1  It is recommended that Board approve the relocation of the grade 7 and 

8 classes from Central Avenue Public School and Esten Park Public 
School to the new Elliot Lake Intermediate Program, to be located in Elliot 
Lake Secondary School in September 2021.   

  
 

 2.4.0 Proposed Resolution 
 

2.4.1  That the Board approve the relocation of the grade 7 and 8 classes from 
Central Avenue Public School and Esten Park Public School to the new 
Elliot Lake Intermediate Program, to be located in Elliot Lake Secondary 
School in September 2021.   



  
 
 
B.3  Director’s Report to The Board 
 
Date:  2020 11 24 
 
Subject: APPROVAL OF POLICIES  
 
 
3.1.0  Background 
  

3.1.1  As part of our policy review process, the following policy has been 
reviewed by trustees, administrative council and appropriate Board 
personnel and is attached as an item: 

  

 
6.06  Physical Intervention 
 

 

3.2.0  Information 
 

3.2.1  The following changes are being recommended: 
 
  

Policy # Section Revision 

6.06 6 Addition of “While the needs of our …behaviour will occur.” 
  Removal of word “Emergency” 
  Addition of “It is expected that…self or others.” 

 
 
 

3.3.0  Recommendations 
 

3.3.1 It is recommended as part of the regular review process, that the Board 
approve the following policy: 

 
6.06  Physical Intervention  

 
as outlined in the Director’s Report of 2020 11 24. 
 
 

3.4.0            Proposed Resolution 
 

3.4.1 That the Board approve, as part of the regular review process, the 
 following policy: 
 

6.06 Physical Intervention 
 
as outlined in the Director’s Report of 2020 11 24. 
 

 
 

 



Algoma District School Board Policy Manual 

 

Policy 6.06: Physical Intervention Page 1 of 1 

SECTION 6:  OPERATIONS 

 
Policy 6.06: Physical Intervention 
 
Supporting Policies  
6.12 Workplace Violence Policy 
6.49 Safe Schools Policy 
 
Supporting Procedures  
Emergency Physical Intervention Procedures 
 
Supporting Protocols and Guidelines 
Guidelines for Staff Working with High/Special Needs Students 
 
Supporting Templates and Forms 
Physical Intervention Incident Report Form 
 
Other Resources 

 
Approved by Board Resolution #162-1999 12 07 
Approved by Board Resolution #196-2012 02 21 
 

 
 

The Algoma District School Board recognizes the right of all students and staff to learn and work in 
a safe environment.   
 
While the needs of our students vary significantly, the Algoma District School Board promotes well-
planned prevention and intervention strategies and an ongoing review of programming to 
significantly reduce the likelihood that inappropriate behaviour will occur.  
 
Staff members shall resolve disruptive or out-of-control behaviour using the least intrusive means 
possible.  
 
The Board recognizes that on rare occasions, a student may be unable to demonstrate appropriate 
self-control, and may have the potential to injure him/herself or others  may engage in behavior that 
causes potential risk-of-injury to self or others.   In such circumstances, staff will follow appropriate 
Emergency Physical Intervention Procedures Physical Intervention Procedures to ensure the safety 
of the student and others.  
 
Emergency Physical Intervention  
 
A preventative procedure used in exceptional circumstances where there is imminent, realistic 
concern that a student may injure him/herself or others. Physical intervention safely limits a student 
from performing an injurious action. 
 
It is expected that physical intervention will only be used in exceptional circumstances when there is 
imminent, realistic concern that the student may injure self or others.  Physical intervention is not to 
be applied as discipline or as punishment. 
 



 

 
    
 
 
B.4   Director’s Report to the Board     
 
Date:  2020 11 24 
 
Subject: AUDIT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2019-2020 
 
    
4.1.0  Background 

 
4.1.1 Ontario Regulation 361/10 s.15 – “Audit Committees” requires 

Audit Committees to present an Annual Report with specific 
reporting categories to the Board of Trustees. 
 

4.1.2 Trustee and Chair of the Audit Committee, Sheryl Evans 
presented the annual report to the Board of Trustees. 
 

4.1.3 The Audit Committee consists of Trustee members Sheryl Evans, 
(Chair of the Committee), Brent Rankin and Susan Thayer.  Ex-
officio members are Board Chair, Jennifer Sarlo and Lucia Reece, 
the Director of Education. External Audit Committee member is 
Steve Nott. Board staff, who are present as a resource to the 
committee, are the Executive Superintendent of Business & 
Operations, Joe Santa Maria and the Manager of Finance, 
Christine Evoy. 

   
4.2.0  Information  
 

4.2.1 The Annual Report of the Audit Committee for the Algoma District 
School Board is attached.  (Attachments B.4 #1). 

 
 
4.3.0  Recommendation 
 

4.3.1 It is recommended that the Board receive the 2019-2020 Annual 
Report of the Audit Committee as outlined in the Director’s Report 
to the Board of 2020 11 24. 

 
 
4.4.0  Proposed Resolution 
 

4.4.1 That the Board receive the 2019-2020 Annual Report of the Audit 
Committee as outlined in the Director’s Report to the Board of 
2020 11 24.   

 



 

November 19, 2020 
 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
 
Annual Report to the Board of Trustees 
For the year ended August 31, 2020 

This report summarizes the audit committee’s actions for the year ending August 31, 
2020.  

Audit Committee Members 

The audit committee consisted of five (5) members listed below: 

- Sheryl Evans – Chair  

- Susan Thayer, Russell Reid – Trustee representatives 

- Stephen Nott, Brent Lamming – External members 

- (Jennifer Sarlo – Ex-officio member) 

In addition, regular attendees at the Committee meetings were: 

- Lucia Reece – Director of Education 

- Joe Santa Maria – Superintendent of Business 

- Christine Evoy – Manager of Finance 

- Melissa Dodge – Regional Internal Audit Manager 

- Mike Marinovich – External Auditor, KPMG 

Administrative Tasks 

At the beginning of the year and in accordance with recommended good practice 
various administrative tasks were completed. These included: 

- Adopting and/or modifying the following protocols: 
o focusing internal audit on key areas of risk, and the adequacy and 

effectiveness of the board’s risk management and internal control 
systems; and 

o clarifying the audit committee’s role in review and oversight of internal 
audit and external audit functions, as well as financial reporting 
processes (through Audit Committee Self-Assessment). 

- Developing an internal audit work plan; and 

- Developing a meeting schedule and agenda for the year. 
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November 19, 2020 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Meetings 

It was agreed to hold three meetings throughout the year with a fourth meeting, from 
December to May, if deemed necessary. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, only two 
meetings could be held. 

The members in attendance at each meeting were as follows: 

 

Governance 

The audit committee operated throughout the fiscal year ending August 31, 2020. All 
of the members satisfied the eligibility requirements in accordance with Ontario 
Regulation 361/10. 

External Auditors 

The relationship with the external auditors has been satisfactory and private meetings 
were held during the year. The external auditors KPMG presented the scope and 
extent of their work to the committee, which the committee reviewed and 
recommended for approval at the October 10, 2019 meeting. The external auditors 
confirmed their independence at this meeting and in the letter dated November 26, 
2019 appended to the 2018-19 Audited Financial Statements. The audit committee 
reviewed and recommended the approval of the annual audited financial statements 
on November 18, 2019. The audit committee recommended the reappointment of the 
external auditors for the next fiscal year during the meeting held November 18, 2019.  

Internal Auditors 

The relationship with the internal auditors has been satisfactory and private meetings 
were held during the year. The Committee reviewed the results of the risk 
assessment, as well as the risk-based internal audit plan (attached) for the 2019/20 
fiscal year. 

Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic the following audits were deferred: 
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